UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Councill

E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 30
6 March 1997

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Fi fteenth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FI RST PART (PUBLIC)* OF THE 30t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 19 November 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: M. ALSTON

later: M. CEAUSU
(Vi ce- Chai r person)

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS:

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

Second periodic report of the Doninican Republic (continued)

SUBSTANTI VE | SSUES ARI SI NG | N THE | MPLEMENTATI ON OF THE | NTERNATI ONAL COVENANT
ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS

*  The summary record of the second part (closed) of the meeting appears
as docunent E/C. 12/1996/ SR. 30/ Add. 1.

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 96-19191 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 30
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTIES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (agenda item 4) (continued)

Second periodic report of the Doninican Republic (continued)
(E/ 1990/ 6/ Add. 7; E/C. 12/ 1995/LQ 7)

1. At the invitation of the Chairnan, Ms. Bonetti Herrera
(Domi ni can Republic) took a place at the Committee table.

2. Ms. BONETTI HERRERA (Dom ni can Republic) said that she was not in a
position to answer questions officially because her Governnment had not given
her any instructions to that effect. She would, however, take note of the
Committee's questions and concerns about the report (E 1990/6/Add.7) and
transmt themto her CGovernnent, which should reply in witing by the end of
the year.

3. The CHAIRMAN said that he understood the delicate position

M's. Bonetti Herrera was in, but stressed that the Committee could not

post pone the consideration of the report. The CGovernnent of the

Dom ni can Republic would have had to nmake a request al ong those |ines wel
enough in advance. He requested the Dom ni can Governnent, through its
representative, to reply in witing to the list of issues (E/C 12/1995/LQ 7)
and invited the nenbers of the Cormittee to ask other questions. The
Committee woul d then prepare its concludi ng observations, which it would adopt
in a closed neeting. At the next session, the representatives of the
Dom ni can Republic might provide further information on the concluding
observations and other inportant matters.

4, Ms. BONOAN- DANDAN said that the Committee had before it a very detailed
docunment from International Whnen's Rights Action Watch, which related to
various articles of the Covenant and the status of women in the

Dom ni can Republic. She requested the secretariat to give a copy to the
representative of the Donminican Republic so that the Government m ght provide
clarifications in that regard

5. M. TEXIER said that, in his view, the report of the Dom ni can Republic
was i nadequate and it was inportant for the Governnent to answer the questions
on the list of issues. Additional information was needed on the situation of
Haitians in the Dom nican Republic, not only with regard to working
conditions, but also to the discrimnation to which they m ght be subjected in
respect of civil status, either for obtaining Dom nican nationality or for
entering into nmarriage.

6. The Dom ni can non-governnmental organization C udad Alternativa had sent
the Committee a letter reporting on the repeal of Decree No. 358-91, which had
created what had ampunted to a state of siege in La Ciénaga and Los Guandul es
in Santo Dom ngo. He welconed the fact that the new Governnment seened to have



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 30
page 3

prom sed not to carry out any nore enforced and nmass expul sions and to
establish a plan for the construction or inprovement of 100,000 dwellings. He
requested the Governnent to provide informati on on that question

7. M. ADEKUOYE said that, |ike Ms. Bonoan-Dandan, he would |ike the
Dom ni can Government to coment on the information contained in the docunment
fromlInternational Winen's Rights Action Watch. Wth regard to paragraph 4 of
the report, which stated that there was no differentiation on ethnic grounds
anong the Dom ni can popul ation, it appeared, in the light of the document in
qguestion, that Bl acks had to deal with discrimnation based on culture and
religion. He therefore requested the Governnent to provide statistics on
unenpl oyment rates according to the ethnic origin of the popul ation and on the
school drop-out rate anong Bl ack children

8. M. RATTRAY said that he would |ike to know how trade unions operated in
free trade areas, particularly in the textile industry. Wre collective
bar gai ni ng agreenents in force? Had there been any strikes?

9. Referring to paragraph 29 of the report, which stated that nore wonmen
than men went on to higher studies and the percentage of women in business had
i ncreased, he said that he would like further information, including
statistics on the percentage of women hol di ng high-level posts in the private
sector.

10. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO requested clarification on the information
contained in the docunment by International Wnen's Rights Action Watch stating
that women were forced into prostitution. She also wi shed to know the status
of Dom nican wonen in civil law, famly law, |abour law, crimnal |aw and
trade |law. How did the Penal Code punish violence by nen agai nst wonmen?

11. Referring to the Conmittee' s concluding observations on the

Dom ni can Republic's preceding report, she said that she would |like to know to
what extent the Dom nican Republic had taken account of the provisions of the
Constitution relating to the right to housing. Could persons who consi dered
that their right to housing had been violated take | egal action? Wat was the
situation with regard to the inplementation of Decrees Nos. 76-94 and 155-94,
under which the State had to provide as nuch protection as possible for

Dom nican famlies, particularly in rural areas?

12. M. CRISSA recalled that, in its concluding observations in

Decenber 1994, the Conmittee had expressed concern about the report of the
Dom ni can Republic and that that country had subsequently subm tted anot her
report, w thout, however, dealing with the matters of concern to the
Committee. The Dom ni can Republic should take account of those concerns in
its next report.

13. M. ALVAREZ VITA said that, like Ms. Jinenez Butragueio, he would |ike
clarification on the information contained in the document submitted to the
Committee by International Wonen's Rights Action Watch and, in particular, on
the legal framework for “common | aw marriage”. He al so requested the
Governnment to authorize nenbers of the Committee to visit the country to
observe the housing situation on the spot. He recalled that the previous
Gover nment had refused




E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 30
page 4

14. M. AHMED requested the representative of the Donmi nican Republic to

i nform her Governnent that the Committee was concerned about the fact that it
had not considered it necessary to authorize her to reply officially to the
Committee's questions and had not requested the Commttee to postpone the
consideration of the report. The report was, noreover, too theoretical

15. The economi c situation of the Dom nican Republic was alarm ng: 60

to 65 per cent of the population |ived below the poverty line and the

unenpl oyment rate in towns was higher than 30 per cent. Dom nicans eni grated
in large nunbers and the Dom nican Republic was far too dependent on
assistance fromthe United States and other countries, as well as on sexua
tourism with all the health risks that it involved.

16. Accordi ng to non-governnental sources, there was no | egal nmachinery in
t he Dom nican Republic for filing conplaints against |aw officers who acted
arbitrarily. It appeared that the courts did not consider that the

international instrunments ratified by the Donmi nican Republic formed part of
internal law and that, in any event, they were not well acquainted with those
i nstruments, the Covenant in particular. Mreover, the universities did not
of fer any human rights teaching.

17. Bl acks and wonen were subjected to various types of discrimnation, even
for obtaining an identity card, and thus encountered all kinds of problens,
especially with regard to enploynent. The situation of women left nuch to be
desired. Five per cent of sugar cane cutters were wonen, who were paid half
as nmuch as nen. Wnen were not anong the beneficiaries of public housing or
agrarian reform programres.

18. Conditions of detention in prisons were inhumane. Prisoners had to
provi de their own food on weekends and sonme waited nonths and even a year to
be tried. In sonme cases, wonen and children were put in prison to replace a

suspected rel ati ve when that person had evaded the | aw

19. In 1995, there had been no trade unions in one enterprise out of four
Trade unions were also prohibited in free trade areas. Only two trade unions
had been able to sign collective bargaining agreenents. Enterprises often
fired pregnant wonen just before they gave birth so as not to pay them
maternity benefits. At present, public funding for education was half of that
usually allocated in other Latin American countries.

20. The report did not specify whether conmon |aw marriages (60 per cent of
couples) were legally valid. Wat rights did the woman enj oy when her husband
abandoned her?

21. He requested the Governnent to provide explanations on those points and
stressed that the Conmittee would not be satisfied sinply with a presentation
of the Constitution and laws in force which would give an idyllic and wong

i npression of the true situation

22. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO drew the attention of the representative of the
Dom ni can Republic to the report of the International Labour Organization
tranm tted by the Secretary-General in docunent E/1996/98 and, in particular
to the paragraphs on the problens encountered in the exercise of trade union




E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 30
page 5

rights and the description of the brutality to which Haitian workers had been
subjected. She would like that information to be taken into account in the
replies of the Dom nican Governnent.

23. M. CEAUSU reconmmended that M. Adekuoye and the Secretariat official
who assisted himshould take account, in the Commttee's concl uding
observations on the report of the Doninican Republic, not only of the concerns
expressed by the nenbers of the Committee, which were based primarily on NGO
reports, but also of the report of the International Labour Organization

which went into rather lengthy detail on the Dom ni can Republic and provided
very specific information.

24, The CHAIRMAN said that, like M. Ahned, M. Alvarez Vita and

M's. Jiménez Butraguefo, he regretted that the |ack of cooperation by the
Dom ni can Governnent placed the Conmittee in a difficult position. He
enphasi zed that, by the end of the session, the Commttee should receive a
reply to the many requests it had made to be able to visit the

Dom ni can Republic. He also stressed that, if the Comrittee wanted account
to be taken of its conclusions, it nust not give up when faced with such an
attitude. He therefore urged all nenbers who had i nformation on the
Dom ni can Republic to make it available to M. Adekuoye.

25. Ms. BONETTI HERRERA (Dom ni can Republic) said that she would
i mredi ately send her Governnment all the questions and comments nmade by the
menbers of the Conmittee so that it would reply satisfactorily.

26. The CHAIRMAN said that the Committee had conpleted the first part of the
consi deration of the second periodic report of the Dom ni can Republic.

27. Ms. Bonetti Herrera (Dominican Republic) wthdrew.

SUBSTANTI VE | SSUES ARI SI NG | N THE | MPLEMENTATI ON OF THE | NTERNATI ONAL COVENANT
ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS (agenda item 3)

28. Ms. BONOAN- DANDAN, reporting on the aspects of the Conmittee's m ssion
to Hong Kong that could be discussed in public, said that she wanted to
acknow edge publicly the efforts the Governnent had nmade to facilitate the
Committee's assessnent of the situation. The mssion, which had taken pl ace
from 30 September to 7 Cctober, had met with representatives of the

m nistries of housing, health and social welfare, culture and sports,

education, manpower and security. It had also been inforned of the work of
the Equal Opportunities Conmm ssion and had net with the Governor in person and
with the President of the Court. It had spoken freely with representatives of

several NGOs and with those of three political parties, nanmely, the Denocratic
Party, the Liberal Party and the Denocratic Alliance for the I nprovenent of
Hong Kong. It had visited hones for children and the elderly and had seen
various types of dwellings, including cage hones.

29. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO requested that the mission report should be
referred to in the Conmittee's report.



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 30
page 6

30. M s. BONOAN- DANDAN said that, in view of the attitude of the Hong Kong
Governnment, which had invited the Conmttee to visit that British colony and
had been fully cooperative, it would not be courteous to refer to the visit in
the report. The negative aspects of the situation in Hong Kong woul d be dealt
with in a closed neeting and the Conmittee would give its point of viewin
that regard in its concludi ng observations.

31. The CHAIRMAN said that the Comm ssion on Hunan Rights was intending to
request a working group to consider docunent E/ CN. 4/ Sub.2/1995/10, which
cont ai ned basic policy guidelines on structural adjustment progranmes and
econom c, social and cultural rights. He thought that the Conmttee should
al so request a small group of experts to consider that docunent and see how
the Committee might respond to it.

32. After an exchange of views in which Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO, M. GRI SSA,
M. CEAUSU, M. AHMED, and M. MARCHAN ROVERO took part, the CHAI RVAN

said that the group would be conposed of M. Ceausu, M. Gissa and

M. Marchan Ronero.

33. M. Ceausu took the Chair.

34. M. TEXIER said that he had taken part in the United Nations Conference
on Human Settlements (Habitat 1), which had been held in Istanbul, Turkey,
from3 to 14 June 1996. The Conference had been extrenely interesting, but
very divided up anmong assenblies and forunms and he had not been able to attend
all the neetings held. That type of world event gave rise to problenms not
only as a result of differences between neeting places, but also because of

t he choi ce of host country. Turkey, where the police had been very mnmuch in
evi dence and, in some cases, over-active, had perhaps not been the best

choi ce.

35. He had, however, been able to take part in a round table on the

right to housing together with the H gh Comm ssioner for Human Ri ghts.

He had al so taken part in a hearing organized by NGOs, including Habitat,
during which he had, for exanple, heard testinmony on nmass expul sions and had
realized that such expul sions could take place anywhere in the world, both in
the United States, as in Atlanta during the Aynpic Ganes, and in Africa, Asia
and Latin America. That neeting had been attended by such em nent persons as
M. Sachar, Special Rapporteur of the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts on the
pronmotion of the realization of the right to decent housing, and they had been
able to state their views. He had also attended other neetings organi zed by
NGOs, as well as some official neetings, at which the drafting of the text of
t he Decl arati on had gone on interm nably because of the very |arge nunber of
partici pants.

36. He regretted that he had not been able to attend the Wrld Assenbly
of Cities because the participants had been politicians, mayors and
representatives of regional bodies and the discussions had related to very
speci fic issues.

37. The I stanbul Declaration once again proclained the right to housing as a
human right, despite opposition by the United States and, for some tine, by
Japan. It started by recalling “the universal goals of ensuring adequate



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 30
page 7

shelter for all and naking human settl enents safer, healthier and nore

| iveabl e, equitable, sustainable and productive”. |Its deliberations had been
based on the Charter and on recognition that the situation of human

settl enents and shelter, between which it made a distinction, continued to
deteriorate in devel oping and in devel oped countries alike. 1t took account
of the text the Comrittee had transmitted as a contribution and reflected its
concerns, since the priorities of the dobal Plan of Action included the
probl em of honel ess people and action to combat poverty and excl usion

38. The Decl aration also stressed the need for global action, while

recogni zing the specific problens of certain countries and even certain
regions and, in that connection, it highlighted the responsibility not only of
States, but also of various decentralized bodies, such as mayors' offices and
regi onal authorities.

39. It also stressed the need to strengthen cooperation with devel opi ng
countries and countries in transition, to inprove the urban habitat, to
provide rural areas with adequate infrastructure, to elimnate poverty and
di scrimnation, to defend fundanental rights and freedons and to nmeet basic
education, nutritional, health and housi ng needs.

40. Par agraph 8 of the Declaration was rather close to sone parts of the
Committee's CGeneral Comrent No. 4, since the participating States affirmed
that they woul d seek the active participation of their public, private and
non- governnental partners at all levels to ensure |egal security of tenure,
protection fromdiscrimnation and equal access to affordable, adequate
housing for all persons.

41. In conclusion, he said that the results of the Conference had been very
positive. He would, however, have liked to be invited to speak as the
representative of the Commttee during official neetings.

42. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO, reporting on the activities of the Committee

on the Elimnation of Discrimnm nation agai nst Wonen, drew attention to

the Note by the Secretary-General entitled “Results of the fifteenth session
of the Committee on the Elimnation of Discrimnation against Wrnen”

(E/CN. 6/1996/ CRP. 1), which indicated that the Commttee had deci ded to anend
its guidelines regarding the formand content of reports of States parties in
the Iight of the Beijing Declaration and Platformfor Action. |In order to
contribute, in cooperation with United Nations bodies, to the inplenmentation
of the recommendations nade in the Platform the Comittee would take
decisions on the following: cultural traditions and stereotypes, w th UNESCO
poverty and structural adjustnment programre, with UNDP, UNIFEM the World Bank
and | MF; violence, with WHG, health, with WHO and UNFPA; enpl oynent and
mgration, with the ILO power and deci sion-nmaking, with UNESCO and the

Conmi ssion on the Status of Whnen; elderly wonmen, with the progranme on the

el derly and di sabl ed; education, training and mass nedia, with UNESCO the ILO
and the Departnment of Public Information; rural wonmen, with FAO and | FAD; and
refugee women, with UNHCR

43. The Committee had al so requested the secretariat to provide it with
i nformati on on the nmany reservations fornul ated by States parties to sone
articles of the Convention.



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 30
page 8

44, She coul d make avail able the draft report of the open-ended working
group to draft an optional protocol to the Convention on the Elimnation of
All Forms of Discrimnation against Wnen.

45. She had requested Ms. Bustelo, a nenber of the Committee on the

El i m nati on of Racial Discrimnation, to provide her with information on the
States parties whose reports the Cormittee on Econom ¢, Social and Cultura
Ri ghts woul d consider at the current session

46. Ms. BONOAN- DANDAN, reporting on the recent activities of the

Committee on the Rights of the Child, said that, at the invitation of the
Director-CGeneral of the ILO, representatives of the Conmttee on the Ri ghts of
the Child had taken part in an informal tripartite neeting on the prevention
and elimnation of child |abour

47. At the request of UNICEF, that Committee was al so continuing to prepare
a handbook on nmeasures for the inplenentation of the Convention on the Rights
of the Child

48. During a neeting it had held with representatives of the Centre for
Human Ri ghts and UNI CEF, the Committee on the Rights of the Child had been

i nformed that the data bank on the rights of the child would soon be
avai l able. The Committee on Econonmic, Social and Cultural Rights had al so
considered the possibility of setting up a data bank on the rights with which
it dealt.

49. At its thirtieth session, the Cormittee on the Rights of the Child had
organi zed a di scussion on the child and the nedia in which representatives of
the specialized agenci es concerned and various journalists had taken part. It
had been stressed that children had to be protected agai nst the pernicious

i nfluence of sone programmes and that the nedia had to respect the integrity
and dignity of the child, particularly with regard to viol ence and sexua
crinmes. That discussion was of particular interest to the Conmittee on
Econom ¢, Social and Cultural Rights because article 10 of the Covenant
related to neasures to protect and assist fanmilies and chil dren.

50. At a joint Conmittee on the Rights of the Child/Interpol neeting,
Interpol had recalled that it had been involved in the preparations for the
Worl d Congress agai nst Conmercial Sexual Exploitation of Children which had
been held in Stockholmin August 1996 and had stated that it wanted to be
involved in the drafting of the optional protocol to the Convention on the
Ri ghts of the Child, which would enable the Cormittee to consider
conmuni cati ons from i ndividuals who considered that their rights had been
vi ol at ed.

51. At its nost recent session, the Commttee had considered the report of
the United Kingdom and had expressed the view that, after the territory of
Hong Kong had been returned to China, which was a party to the Convention

t he Hong Kong Speci al Administrative Region would have to submit reports.

52. M. KOUZNETSQV, reporting on the work of the Human Ri ghts Conmitt ee,
said that that Cormittee's general observations were of great inportance for
the Conmittee on Econonmic, Social and Cul tural Rights.




E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 30
page 9

53. The Human Rights Committee had said that it was prepared to reduce its
operating costs, provided that the quality of its work did not suffer. It
had, for example, decided to devote three neetings to the consideration of
initial reports and only two to the consideration of later reports. The ora
guestions asked by the menmbers of the Conmittee during the consideration of
reports should not be different fromthe questions already put to the State
party in witing. The Conmittee had al so decided to ensure that States
parties were given enough advance notice to be able to send a del egation
during the consideration of their reports. The report submitted by States
parties must, if necessary, also relate to periods for which no report had
been prepared. 1In the event of gross violations of human rights, the
Committee could ask the State party concerned whether it agreed that
representatives of the Conmittee should go on nmission to the country to
observe the situation. The Conmittee had set up working groups which would be
responsi bl e for considering the comrents of States parties on the Cormittee's
concl udi ng observations and suggesting neasures it mght take in that regard.

54, In conclusion, he said that the Conmttee on Econom c, Social and

Cultural Rights might draw inspiration fromthe initiatives adopted by the
Human Ri ghts Conmitt ee.

The public part of the neeting rose at 5.20 p. m




